UNITED
NATIONS E

Di str.

Economic and Social GENERAL

Council

E/ C. 12/ 1998/ SR. 1
8 Septenber 1998

ENGLI SH
Original: FRENCH

COVM TTEE ON ECONOM C, SOCI AL AND CULTURAL RI GHTS
Ei ght eent h sessi on
SUMVARY RECORD OF THE 1st MEETI NG

Hel d at the Pal ais des Nations, Geneva,
on Monday, 27 April 1998, at 10.30 a.m

Chai r per son: M. ALSTON

CONTENTS

ADOPTI ON OF THE AGENDA
ORGANI ZATI ON OF WORK

SUBSTANTI VE | SSUES ARI SI NG I N THE | MPLEMENTATI ON OF THE | NTERNATI ONAL COVENANT
ON ECONOM C, SOCI AL AND CULTURAL RI GHTS

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submtted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunentto
the Official Records Editing section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the neetings of the Cormittee at this
session will be consolidated in a single corrigendumto be issued shortly
after the end of the session.

GE. 98-15879 (E)



E/ C. 12/ 1998/ SR. 1
page 2

The neeting was called to order _at 10.45 a. m

ADOPTI ON OF THE AGENDA (item 1 of the provisional agenda) (E/ C 12/1998/1)

1. The agenda was adopt ed

ORGANI ZATI ON OF WORK (agenda item 2) (E/ C.12/1998/L.1)

2. The programre of work was adopted

3. The CHAI RPERSON summari zi ng what had happened since the seventeenth
session of the Comrttee, gave Committee nenbers sone information that could
be of use during the eighteenth session. |In addition, he said that, at the

Round Table on Setting Benchmarks for the Realization of Econom c, Social and
Cul tural Rights, organized by the Hi gh Comn ssioner for Human Ri ghts, an

i mportant question had been raised concerning the neaning of the terms
“indicator” and “benchmark” and the difference between them |Indicators were
generally technical, objective, and difficult and costly to assenble. They
were therefore conplex, and expert opinion on the subject was divided. By
contrast, benchmarks were based on human rights norns, which nmeant that they
did not refer to housing or education, for exanple, in the abstract, but
derived directly fromthe nornms of the International Covenant on Econom c
Social and Cultural Rights. They were not nerely quantitative, but were also
qualitative and nuch nore subjective, in that it was for Governnments to
indicate the initial benchmarks they used in order to define what they

consi dered to be the minimumconditions required in order to neet their

comm tments under the Covenant. The objective aspect only canme in later, when
the Government entered into a dialogue with civil society and, later, with the
Conmmittee. The Conmmittee should continue to ask countries to define their
benchmarks in order to be able to measure the progress they had nmade in

i mpl ementing econom ¢, social and cultural rights, even if nost Governnents
appeared reluctant to do so.

4. He wel coned the decision taken by the Comm ssion on Human Rights at its
fifty-fourth session to appoint a Special Rapporteur on the right to
educati on, who would consult with the Conmittee and work closely with the
compet ent bodi es, such as UNESCO and UNICEF. In the area of econom c rights,

t he Conmi ssion had, at the same session, taken note, in resolution 1998/23 on
the right to food, of the general discussion on the subject that the Commttee
had held at its seventeenth session and had invited the Conrittee to consider
and adopt a general comrent on the subject.

5. Referring to the other decisions taken by the Conmi ssion, he wel coned

t he appoi ntnent of a special rapporteur on the effects of foreign debt on the

full enjoyment of economic, social and cultural rights, and of an independent

expert on the question of human rights and extreme poverty. GCeneral comment 8
(1997) on the rel ationship between econonm c sanctions and respect for

econom ¢, social and cultural rights, adopted at the seventeenth session, had

been the subject of much conment in various bodies and had been brought to the
attention of the Security Council during a debate on sanctions.

6. He deplored the continuing dowward trend in the regul ar budget of the
United Nations, and said that the programre of action adopted by the Conmittee



E/ C. 12/ 1998/ SR. 1
page 3

on Econom c, Social and Cultural Rights to offset the reduction had brought in
around US$ 140,000 in voluntary contributions, which should make the
Committee's work easier. The proposal to elimnate the post of secretary in
the human rights bodies and to establish a pool of secretaries to be assigned
to one or other of themas the need arose would entail a dilution of
responsibility that would hanper their work.

7. Wth regard to the preparation of the periodic reports submitted to the
human rights bodi es, the chairpersons of the human rights treaty bodies

consi dered that, while the initial reports should of necessity address al
aspects of the human rights situation, it would be desirable for the
subsequent periodic reports to address a linited nunber of specific issues in
detail. The suggestion that the human rights treaty bodi es shoul d adopt
common general coments was al nost inpossible to inplement. However, sone of
them such as the Conmittee on Econom c, Social and Cultural Rights, the Human
Ri ghts Committee and the Conmittee on the Elinmination of Discrinination

agai nst Wonen, could prepare a conmon statenent on a given aspect of human
rights of nore direct concern to them

8. M. SADI welconed the interest aroused by the Committee's genera
comment 8 (1997) on the rel ati onship between econom ¢ sanctions and respect
for econom c, social and cultural rights. It would be a good idea to
encourage the other treaty bodies to adopt a general comment to the sane
effect, in order to draw the attention of the Security Council, when
appropriate, to the inpact of its resolutions in their respective areas of
conpet ence

9. M s. BONOAN- DANDAN sai d she was pl eased that the Comr ssion on Human

Ri ght s had adopted nunerous resolutions that had been directly pronpted by the
action of the Conmittee on Econom c, Social and Cultural Rights. She noted
the cormments nmade by the chairpersons of treaty bodies concerning the periodic
reports of States parties and the structure of their concludi ng observations
on those reports.

10. M. RIEDEL wel comed the fact that the Comm ssion on Human Ri ghts had
taken up a nunber of the Committee's suggestions, particularly concerning the
preparation of benchmarks. Concluding observations, which in many cases were
too general, should specifically address the Conmittee's main areas of
concer n.

11. M. TEXIER wel comed the fact that the Conmmi ssion on Human Ri ghts was
sharing nore and more of the Cormittee's concerns, as denponstrated by the
appoi nt ment of a Special Rapporteur on the right to education and an

i ndependent expert on extrene poverty. It would be desirable, in terns of the
means available to the Conmittee, for an expert to be able to assist Conmittee
menmbers between sessions. As to the Committee's nethods of work, he asked
whet her the Econonic and Social Council would be considering at its next
session the Commttee's request for a third session every year. Lastly, he
proposed that, during the first week of the current session, a small working
group shoul d neet between plenary meetings in order to consider the question
of general comments and concl udi ng observati ons.



E/ C. 12/ 1998/ SR. 1
page 4

12. M. SADI proposed that that task should be entrusted to the
pre-sessional Working G oup.

13. M s. BONOAN- DANDAN supported by Ms. JI MENEZ BUTRAGUENQ said that the
Pre-sessional Working G oup al ready had enough to do and suggested that the
proposed new wor ki ng group should nmeet outside the Committee neetings.

14. The CHAI RPERSON suggested that, to begin with, an informal working group
shoul d neet outside neeting hours in order to consider the foll ow ng
guestions: the structure of concludi ng observations, the nechanisns to be set
up in order to ensure their follow up, and general comments. The informa
wor ki ng group could then put proposals to the Conmnmittee concerning the

establi shment of a nore official working group.

15. It was so deci ded.

16. Ms. JI MENEZ BUTRAGUENO T requested the secretariat to assist Committee
menbers in drawing up the list of issues by preparing a file for them
containing relevant information on the countries concerned.

17. The CHAI RPERSON said that the Chairperson of the Human Rights Comittee
had officially requested himto communicate to her the text of the Conmittee's
general commrent 8 (1997) on the relationship between econonic sanctions and
respect for economic, social and cultural rights. He believed that at |east
one treaty body had referred to general comment 8 in its concluding
observations addressed to a State party. He would request the High
Comm ssi oner for Human Rights, on behalf of the Committee, to bring genera
comment 8 to the Security Council's notice

18. The Econom c and Soci al Council would consider, at its May 1998 session,
the Cormittee's request for a third annual session. Even if it acceded to the
request, however, a third session could not be organized before 1999.

19. The Secretary-General of the United Nations Conference on Trade and
Devel opment (UNCTAD) had indicated that he very nuch wi shed to | ook at how
UNCTAD coul d contribute to the Conmittee's work. Discussions wuld take place
on that question during the weeks and nonths to come. He (the Chairperson)
hoped t hat UNCTAD woul d all ow one or two of its experts to take part in the
general discussion to be held by the Conmittee during the current session.

20. Responding to M. Sadi's concern at the regrettable absence fromthe
Committee's neetings of representatives of concerned international bodies such
as FAO, he said that the only thing the Cormmttee could do to renedy the
situation was to convince those concerned, through the inportance of the work
it was doing, of the need to attend its deliberations.

21. Lastly, he paid tribute to the H gh Comm ssioner for Human Ri ghts, who
had kept her promise to the Cormittee to do everything possible in order to
gi ve econonic, social and cultural rights the place they deserved within the
United Nations system It was encouraging to note that nore and nore bodies
and institutions, such as the Wrld Bank and UNDP, were giving serious thought
to the way in which they should take account of human rights in general and
econom ¢, social and cultural rights in particular in their activities.



E/ C. 12/ 1998/ SR. 1
page 5

SUBSTANTI VE | SSUES ARI SI NG | N THE | MPLEMENTATI ON OF THE | NTERNATI ONAL COVENANT
ON ECONOM C, SOCI AL AND CULTURAL RI GHTS (agenda item 3)

22. The CHAI RPERSON gave the floor to the representative of Food-first
I nformation and Action Network (FIAN).

23. M. W NDFUHR (Food-first Information and Action Network), referring to
the right to food, which had been the subject of the day of general discussion
at the Committee's seventeenth session, said that a nunber of non-governmenta
organi zations (NGOs) representing all regions, had prepared a draft code of
conduct on the right to food, which interpreted the contents of that right and
States' obligations. The text had received the support of several hundred

ot her NGOs and even a nunber of Governnents al ready.

24. FI AN wel coned the appoi ntnent by the Sub-Commi ssion on Prevention of
Di scrimnation and Protection of Mnorities of a Special Rapporteur on the
right to adequate food, M. Eide, who had invited NGOs and experts to
contribute to the preparation of the final report he was drafting on the
subject on the basis of a study he had carried out on the same subject in
1987.

25. FI AN had recently started canmpaigning in the United States agai nst new
social protection legislation which |imted the paynent of welfare benefits to
five years. The canpaign was to mark the start of a wi de-ranging canpaign to
get the United States to ratify the International Covenant on Economic, Soci al
and Cultural Rights. FIAN hoped that the Commttee would support it inits
efforts.

26. Lastly, he proposed that the Conmmittee should wite a letter to the
Government of Col onbia expressing its concern at the assassination of the
founder of the |l awyers' association in Col onbia, M. Eduardo Umafia Mendoza
and at the increase in violence, which was affecting nore and nore human
rights defenders in that country.

27. M. TEXI ER supported the proposal; if Conmmittee nenbers agreed, he would
draft a letter to that effect.

28. The CHAI RPERSON asked Committee nenbers if it would be wise to take that
action since, in sinmlar cases, the Cormittee had not systematically done so.
Wuld it not be preferable to draw up a statenment on the inportance of
defending the rights of those who were working to pronmote economnic, social and
cultural rights, or even a brief general conment?

29. The Chairperson gave the floor to the representative of the
I nternational Baccal aureate Oifice (1BO.

30. Ms. BONNER (I nternational Baccal aureate Office) explained

that 800 schools in 94 countries, 50 per cent of which were State school s,
prepared students for the International Baccal aureate, which was recognized
t hroughout the world. The schools' teaching ained not only to devel op
students' intelligence, but also to train their mnds, to teach themto
respect cultures other than their own, to instil rmutual understanding and to
i ncrease their awareness of human rights, the environment, the right to



E/ C. 12/ 1998/ SR. 1
page 6

health, etc. It was extrenely inportant that Governnents shoul d understand
that that kind of education could be very useful in their schools, in
particular for the children of mgrants and refugees. Students could be
taught in their own | anguage but, fromthe fifth year onwards, |earning one of
the maj or world | anguages - English, Chinese, Spanish or French - was

compul sory. The international schools' programre gave an education for life
and |1 BO earnestly hoped that, during the United Nations Decade for Human

Ri ght s Educati on, many Governnents woul d recogni ze the val ue of the education
af forded by the International Baccal aureate for their own schools.

31. The CHAI RPERSON gave the floor to the representative of the
I nternational Council on Social Welfare (1 CSW.

32. Ms. GREUTER (I nternational Council on Social Welfare) said that the NGO
Working Group on Nutrition highlighted the vital role of NGOs in nutrition and
encouraged themto beconme involved in the inplenentation of the 1992
International Conference on Nutrition. It was inmportant to ensure gender
equity in the debate on the right to food, to enphasize national capacity to
take the necessary steps in order to inprove household food security and
nutrition, and to collect, analyse and di sseni nate gender-di saggregated data
on food and nutrition to be used in the design of,inter alia, programes

aimed at inproving the nutritional |evel of all

33. The Working Group would be working in the near future to promote food
security and the right to food, the Comittee's work and the draft code of
conduct on the right to food. NGOs could also make a useful contribution to
the work of the Committee on Food Security by becom ng involved in the

i mpl ementati on of the Food Insecurity and Vulnerability Information and
Mappi ng System (FI VI MS) .

34. The CHAI RPERSON t hanked the representatives of the NGOs for their
contri buti ons.

The neeting rose at 12.55 p. m




